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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Supervisors
Winneshiaek County
Decorah, Iowa

We have audited the accampanying firancial statements of the govermmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Winnpeshiek County as of and for the year ended June
30, 2005, which collectively camprise the County’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of Winneshiek County's management. OCur responseibility is to expresgs opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in
accordanca with U.S. generally accepted auditing gtandards and the standards
applicable to fimancial audits contained in Goverament Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements arxe £free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We balieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

The County has not maintained a record of all eqQquipment used within the
County; therefore, the amount that should be recorded is not known and not recorded
in the govermmental activities. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles

require that all capital assets, net depreciation, be reported in the governmental
activities.

In ocur opinion, except for the effectzs on the financial sStatements of the
amiggion of some capital assgets, net depreciation which results in an incomplete
presentation for the governmental activities as described in the preceding
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities
information of Winneshiek County as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in
financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

In addition, imn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Winneshiek County as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof €for the year then
anded in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.



In accordance with Goverpment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated October 27, 2005, on our consideration of Winneshiek County’s internal
control over financial reporting and an cur tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulatiomns, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpcose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intermal
control over fimancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the intermal control over fimancial reporting or
on campliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Govermment Auditing Standards and should be considered in conjunction with
this report in comsidering the results of ocur audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison
information on page 4 and pages 36 through 38, are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information reguired by U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of ingquiries of manamgement regarding the
methods o©of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did nmot audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

ek, Jolow <2, PC

Decorah, Iowa
October 27, 2005



WINNESHIEK COUNTY
DECORAH, IOWA

Management’s Discnssion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Management of Winneshiek County provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Winneshiek County's
annual financial statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the County’s financial statements,
which follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenues of the County’s governmental activities decreased 12.6%, or approximately $2,285,000, from fiscal
2004 to fiscal 2005. Operating grants and contributions increased approximately $305,000 and capital grants and
contributions decreased approximately $2,477,000.

Program expenses were 6.2%. or approximately $801,000, more in fiscal 2005 than in fiscal 2004. Mental health
expenses decreased approximately $140,700 and roads and transportation, administration, and nonprogram
expenses increased approximately $333,300, $223,800, and $358,700, respectively.

The County’s net assets increased 6%, or approximately $2,224,000, from June 30, 2004 to June 30, 2005.

USING THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those staternents. These statements are
organized so the reader can understand Winneshiek County as a financial whole, or as an entire operating entiry.

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. These
provide information about the activities of Winneshiek County as a whole and present an overall view of the
County's finances and a Jonger-term view of those finances.

The fund financial statements tell how governmental services were financed in the short term as well as what
remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report Winneshiek County’s operations in more detaii than
the government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant funds with all other non-
major funds presented in total in a single column. For Winneshiek County, the general fund, MH/DD-special
revenue fund, rural services-special revenue fund, and secondary roads-special revenue fund are the most
significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which Winneshiek
County acts solely as an agent or custodian for the benefit of those outside of the government.

The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports
the financial statements with a comparison of the County’s budget for the year,

Supplementary information provides detailed information about the nonmajor special revenue, nonmajor debt
service, nonmajor enterprise, and the individual fiduciary funds.

Reporting the Connty as a Whole

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most important questions asked about the County’s finances is, “Is the County as a whole
better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The statement of net assets and the statement of
activities report information about the County as 2 whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this
guestion. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic
resources measurement focus which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the
current year’s revenues and expenses are taken mto account regardless of when cash is received or paid.



The statement of net assets presents all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as “net assets”. Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the event or change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods.

In the statement of net assets and statement of activities, the County is divided into two distinct Xinds of
activities:

Governmental Activities: Most of the County’s programs and services are reported here, inciuding
public safety and legal services, physical health and social services, mental health, county environment
and education, roads and transportation, government services to residents, administration, interest on
long-term debt and other non-program activities. Property tax, state tax credits and state and federal
grants finance most of these activities.

Business-Type Activities: These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover
all of the expenses for the goods or services provided.

REPORTING THE COUNTY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
Fund Financial Statements
Fund financial repornts provide detailed information about the County's major funds. The County uses
different funds in accordance with the Uniform Financial Accounting for lowa County Governments to record its
financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the County’s most significant funds.
The County’s major governmental funds are the general fund, MH/DD-special revenue fund, rural services-
special revenue fund, and secondary roads-special revenue fund.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds account for most of the County’s basic services. These focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds, and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These governmental
funds includes: 1) the general fund, 2) the special revenue funds such as mental health, rural service, and
secondary roads, 3) the debt service fund, and 4) the capital projects fund. These funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed, short-term view of the County’s general governmental operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the County’s prograrms.

The governmental funds required financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds account for the County's landfill fund, Burr Oak and Festina Sanitary Systems-
Enterprise funds and employee group health insurance-internal service fund. The enterprise funds account for the
charges for goods and services received to recover expenses for goods or services provided. Intemal service

funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various
functions.

The proprietary funds required financial statements include a statement of net assets, a statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and a statement of cash flows.

4a



Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in an agency capacity for others and cannot be used to
support the government’s own programs. The County has agency funds that account for emergency management
services, the county assessor, and E911 service board are some examples.

The fiduciary funds required financial statements include a statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities.

A summary reconciliation between the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial
statements follows the fund financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. The analysis that
follows focuses on the changes in the net assets.

Condensed Statement of Ket Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)
Governmental Activities

2005 2004 Percent Change
Current and other assets S 12,954 § 12,902 0.40%
Capital agsets 36,130 34,080 6.02%
Total assets 49,084 46,982 4.47%
Long-term debt outstanding 2,972 3,441 -13.63%
Other liabilities 6,884 6,584 4.56%
Total liabilities 5,856 10,025 -1,69%
Net assets

Invested in capital asgsets,
net of relatad debt 33,338 30,817 B.18%
Restricted 3,575 3,603 -0.78%
Unrestricted 2,315 2,537 -8.75%
Total net assets $ 39,228 $ 36,957 6.14%

Buginess-type Activities

2005 2004 Percent Change
Current and other assets $ 61 § 53 15.09%
Capital assets 1,718 1,804 -4.77%
Total asgets 1,779 1,857 -4.20%
Long-term debt outstanding 217 218 -0.46%
Other liabilities is 25 -24.00%
Total liabilities 236 243 -2.88%
Ket assete

Invested in capital aesets,
net of related debt 1,500 1,583 -5.24%
Restricted 213 190 12.11%
Unrestricted {170) (159) -6.92%
Total net agsets $ 1,543 § 1,614 -4.40%
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The largest portion of the County's net assets is invested in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings and
equipment), less the related debt. The debt related to the investment in capital assets is liquidated with the sources other
than capital assets. Restricted net assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation on bow they can be used. Unrestricted net assets-the part of net assets that can be used
to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal
requirements-decreased for the governmental activities approximately $222,900 or 8.8% and decreased for the business-
type activities approximately $11,000.

The increase in net assets for the governmental activities 15 due to an increase in operating gramts and
contributions. The decrease in net assets for the business-type activities is due to the Burr Oak sewer fund and Festina
sewer fund paying of bonds and increasing the amount restricted in net assets invested in capital assets.

The following analysis shows the change in net assets for the year ending June 30, 2005:

Changes in Ket Assets

(Expressed in Thousands)
Governmaental Activities

2005 2004 Parcent Change
Revenues:

Program revenue
Charges for service 4 1,092 § 1,120 -2.50%
Operating grants 5,290 4,985 6.12%
Capital grants 2,206 4,684 -52.90%

General revenue
Property taxes 5,488 5,721 -4.07%
Local option sales tax 1,144 958 19.42%
Penalty and interest on property taxes 51 66 ~22.73%
State tax creditse 315 386 -18.39%
Franchige tax - 55 -100.00%
Rents 111 101 9.90%
Unrestricted investment earnings 148 i17 26.50%
Other 21 (42) -150.00%
Total revenues 15,866 18,151 ~12.59%

Program expenses:
Public safety and legal services 1,630 1,632 -0.12%
Physical health and gocial services 1,475 1,407 4.83%
Mental health 1,983 2,124 -6.64%
County anvironment and education 1,015 1,002 1.30%
Roads and transportation 5,309 4,976 6.69%
Government services to residents 271 284 -4.58%
Adminigtration or gemeral govermment 1,179 956 23.33%
Non-program 625 266 134.86%
Interest on long-term dabt 155 195 -20.51%
Total expenses 13,642 12,842 6.23%
Increase inm net assets 2,224 5,309 -58.11%
Het assets beginning of year 37,004 31,648 16.92%
Net assets end of year $ 38,228 § 36,957 6.14%




Buginess-type activities

2005 2004 Parcent Change
Revenues:

Program revenue
Charges for service $ 197 § 342 -42.40%
Total revenues 197 342 -42.40%

Program expenses:
Operating expenses 268 275 -2.55%
Total expenses 268 275 -2.55%
Increase (decrease) in net assets {71} 67 -205.97%
Net assets beginning of year 1,614 1,547 4.33%
Net assets end of year § 1,543 § 1,614 -4.40%

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS

As the County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 35,860,709,
approximately $200,000 decrease of the 2004 fiscal year end balance of $6,098,849. The County spent approximately
$125,620 more than the prior fiscal year.

¢ The general fund received more revenues during fiscal year 2005 through use of money and property and
intergovernmental revenue. The ending fund balance showed a decrease from the prior year of $2.179,698 to
$1,930,519. due primarily to an increase in the capital project expenditures of $348,000.

e The County has continued to look for ways to effectively manage the cost of mental health services. For the year,
expenditures totaled approximately $1,973,600, a decrease of 6.6% from the prior year. The mental health fund
balance at year end increased by approximately $208.000 over the prior year.

e Secondary roads fund revenues decreased approximately $257,000 over the prior year, due principally to a
decrease in intergovernmental revenue. This decrease in revenues results in a decrease in the secondary roads
fund ending balance approximately $289,000, or 16.6%.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget following required
public notice and hearing for all funds, except agency fumds. Although the budget document presents functional
disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated functional level, not at the fund or fund type level.
The budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. The County budget 13
prepared on the cash basis. Over the course of the year, the County amended its operating budget once. The amendment
was made in May 2005 and resulted in an increase in secondary roads and transportation disbursements. However, this
did not require an increase in taxes as the County received more intergovermmental revenues than originally projected.

The amendment made during the 2005 fiscal year should have no impact on the 2006 fiscal year’s budget.



The following chart shows the original and amended budget for fiscal 2005 as well as the actuval revenue and
expenditures for the year:
Budgetary Comparison Sachedule
(Exprossed im Thousands)

Budget Budget Amountsa
Basis Original Final Variance
REVENUOES

Property and other County tax $ 6,598 [ 6,618 $ 6,619 $ (21)
Interest and penalty on pxroperty tax 52 45 &5 7
Intergovernmantal 6,022 6,768 6,312 (290)
Licenses and permits 15 13 i3 2
Charges for service 527 497 542 (15)
Use of money and property 245 219 225 20
Migcellaneous 1158 i34 108 7

Total revenuesn S 13,574 $ 14,294 s 13,864 8 {290)

EXPENDITURES

Public safety and legal services ] 1,553 $ 1,685 $ 1,681 § 128
Physical health and Bocial services 1,367 1,445 L,451 84
Mental health 1,985 2,196 2,196 211
County environment and education gexrvices 954 1,166 1,027 73
Roads and transportation 4,525 4,018 4,825 300
Governmental services to xesidents 276 361 297 21
Administrative garvices 1,178 1,245 1,244 66
Non-program 3 8 6 3
Debt service 570 578 578 8
Capital project 1,266 1,833 1,544 278

Total expenditures $ 13,677 $ 14,535 $ 14,849 [ 1,172

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2005, Winneshiek County had $36,129,984 invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including large road equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress for the governmental activities. For the
enterprise funds, the County had $1,718,062 invested in land, landfill and sewer systems. The County is still in the
process of recording all capital assets for the governmental activities.

The County had depreciation expense of $1,651,363 for fiscal year 2005 and total accumulated depreciation of
$16,466,349 as of June 30, 2005 for the governmental activities. The County had depreciation/depletion expense of
$86,228 for fiscal year 2005 and total accumulated depreciation/depletion of $1,124,203 as of June 30, 2005 for the
business-type activities. More detailed information about the County’s capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the
financial statements.

Debt
At year-end, the County had approximately $3,191,000 in bonds and other debt compared 1o approximately
$3,483,000 last year. More detail is presented in Note 9 to the financial statements.

The County’s general obligation bond rating continues to carry the fourth highest rating possible, a rating that has
been assigned by national rating agencies to the County’s debt since 1995. The Constitution of the State of lowa limits the
amount of general obligation debt that counties can issue 10 S percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within
the County’s corporate Jimits. The County's outstanding general obligation debt is significantly below this $55,426,080
iimnit.



Other obligations include accrued vacation pay. More detailed information about the County’s long-term
liabilities is presented in Note 9 to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Winneshiek County's elected and appointed officials and citizens considered many factors when setting the fiscal
year 2006 budget, tax rates, and the few that will be charged for various County activities. One of those factors js the
economy.

The County continues to receive additional Jocal option sales tax due to the opening of the Super Walmart in
Decorah.

The County is anticipating not receiving 100% replacement for Homestead Credit therefore; the difference will
need to be paid by the local taxpayers. Winneshiek County has a very small amount of delinquent property taxes due to
the fact that the local taxpayers pay their property taxes in a timely manner.

Amounts avaifable for appropriation in the operating budget are $16,036,000, a increase of 15.0% over the final
2005 budget. Property tax (benefiting from the 2006 rate decrease and increase in assessed valuations) and grant receipis
are expected to lead the increase. The increase in receipts will help defray the increase of expenditures for fiscal year
2006.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview of
Winneshiek County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions

about this report or need additional finaucial information, contact the County Auditor’s Office, Winneshiek County, 201
West Main St, Decorah, 1A 5210].
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WINNESHIRE COUNTY

STATEMERNT OF NET ASSETS

June 30,

ASSETS
Cask snd pooled lnvestments
Receivables
Property tax
Dalingquent
Succeeding year
Accountes
Accrued interest
Due fraom other governments
Inventories
Prepald expanses
Investwment in insurance pool
Kondepreciable agsets
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/depletion

Total aseets

LIABILITIES aND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable
Salaries and benafits payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to (fram) other funds
Due to otkher governments
Deferred revenue
Succeeding ysar property tax
Long-term liabilities
Portion due within ore year
Bonds payable
Motes payadle
Campansated absences
Portion due after one year
Bonds payable
Notes payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital asgets, net of related debt
Rastricted for

Mental health

Rural service

Secondaxy roads

Othexr special revenuve

Other purpoges
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and met zssets

See Notes to Financiel Statements,

EXETBIT A

2005
Goveromental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

5 6,217,902 $ 47,819 6,265,721
7,782 7,792
5,568,219% 5,568,219
36,265 1,172 37,437
12,471 12,4871
773,066 12,366 785,432
289,225 289,225
38,481 38,481
10,590 10,590
2,131,352 9,752 2,141,144
13,598,632 1,708,270 35,706,902
s 459,083,598 [ 1,779,419 50,863,414
S 809,519 809,519
176,483 5 774 177,257
11,997 111 12,108
(16,683) 16,683 -
334,649 334,649
5,568,219 5,568,219
380,000 380,000
84,034 - B4,834
180,305 1,451 181,756
2,185,000 2,185,000
141,658 217,719 359,377
9,855,981 236,738 10,092,719
33,338,492 1,500,343 34,838,835
1,468,801 1,468,801
670,457 670,497
1,145,430 1,245,430
264,456 264,456
25,959 213,112 239,071
2,314,379 {170,774) 2,143,605
39,228,014 1,542,681 40,770,685
$ 49,083,995 § 1,779,419 50,863,414




WINNEJHIER COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended Juna 30,

Program Rovepuas

200%

EXHIBIT B

Not {Expense) Revenue and Changen in MHet Assots

Charges for Opoxating Capital Bover tal Businaas-type
Functlopne and Prograxs Exponses Sarvican gracke Grants Rotiviciaes hativities Tctal
Governmental activities
Public aafety and legal mervices & 1,629,569 $ 23,5858 & 14,433 %{1,591,571) $ (1,591,571}
Physical health and mocial sarvices 1,475,278 295,189 672,230 g 2,347 {505,512} {505,513)
Mental heslth 1,982,980 856,440 {1,126,540) (1,128,540}
County semvironment and education 1,015,289 30,054 181,943 13,125 {782, 161) (782,161}
figada and transportation 5,308,945 106,084 3,315,753 2,173,389 296,281 296,281
Govermennt services to residents 270,790 464,736 239,278 17,517 450,738 480,738
Adminigtration or gensral govaermmant 1,179,654 {1,179,654} {1,179,654)
NOBDTOgTam 62%,049 164,068 {460,964} (460,984)
Long-term debt interest 185,051 (155,051} (155, 051)
Total governmental astivivios 13,642,608 1,091,693 5,290,080 2,206,378 (8,054, 434) § - {5,054,454)
Busineass-typa activitias
Landfil} 221,615 163,358 {58,257} (58,357)
Burr Oak sewar 24,398 17,835 (6,563) (6,563)
Festina sewer 22,532 14,587 (7,545) (7,545)
Total business-typs activitles 268,545 196,180 - - - {72,365) {72,365}
Total § 13,911,150 $1,287,873 £58,290,080 §$ 2,206,378 {5,054,454) {72,365) (5,126,819}
Jenexral revanven
Propercty tawes levied for
Gensral purposes 5,233,018 5,233,015
Dabt servics 254,544 254, 544
Local option sales tax 1,144,299 1,144,299
Parnalty and interest on progezty taxes 51,125 51,129
fAtate tax credits 314,771 314,771
Franchlase tax - -
Renta 110,522 1ip,522
Unrestricted investmernt earnings 148,434 162 148,798
Gain on sale of capital ammots 21,347 21,347
Total general xevenuass 7,278,061 &2 7,278,423
Change in net assetws 2,213,607 (72,003} 2,181,804
Het apsste, baginning of year, resstated 37,004,407 1,614,604 3B,619,051

Nat assets, end of yeoux

fes Hotae to Floanclial Atatements.

$ 39,228,014

5 1,542,681

5 40,770,695




ABBETS
Cash and pooled investments
Reaslvableon
Property tax
Dalinquant
Bucoeeading yaar
Accounts

hoorued lntearest
Dus £rom other funds
Dus from other govesnments
Prepald expendlitures
Inventories
Investment in irsuxance pool

Total assata

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitien
Accounte payable
Balaries and bensfitse payable
Dua to other governmants
Daferred ravenus
Succseding year property tax
Other

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Ragerved for
Inventories
Prapaild expenditures
Other
Dabt service
Special revenue funds
Unreserved
Genaral fund
Bpenial revenus funds

Total fund balances

Total lisbilities and fund balances

90 Notes to Flnanclal Statements.

WINNESBHIXK COUNTY

BALANCE BHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EXRIBYIT C

June 30, 2005
Spoclal Revenue Other Total
Mental Rural Secondary Governmental Governmeatal
General Health Sexvices Roads Funda Funds

§ 2,018,595 s 1,729,803 -4 503,188 H 1,143,364 $ 332,001 & 5,726,951
6,687 571 397 137 7,793
3,487,755 1,124,433 692,649 263,378 5,568,219
29,196 29 - 7,049 36,265
11,548 341 1L, 889
88,682 16,683 2,266 107,631
275,07¢ 4,204 162,363 326,579 4,770 773,065
19,632 719 3,330 14,800 38,481
289,225 209,225
i0,5%¢ 10,590
s 5,947,759 5 2,859,830 $ 1,378,610 -] 1,781,917 - 602,893 $ 12,570,109
$ 262,300 ] 64,815 % 8,322 -] 262,828 & 1,200 & 539,465
101, 264 1,653 3,812 68,734 176,483
136,240 198,409 334,649
3,487,789 1,124,433 692,649 263,379 5,568,219
29,657 487 322 iie 30,584
4,017,240 1,390,797 705,105 331,562 264,696 6,709,400
09,225 489,225
19,632 719 3,330 14,800 39,481
15,955 25,959
14,272 14,272
313,925 323,918
1,894,528 1,004,928
1,468,314 678,175 1,145,430 3,203,918
2,930,518 1,469,033 673,505 1,449,455 338,197 5,860,709
5 5,947,759 g 2,859,830 & 1,378,610 $ 1,781,917 $ 602,893 $§ 12,570,109




EXHIBIT C

{(Contimmed)
WINNESHYEX COUNTY
BALANCE SEEET
GOVERNMEXNTAL FUINDS
June 30, 2005
Reconciliacion of governmental fund balanceg to net agsets
Total govermmental fund balancaes [ 5.860,709
Amountg reported for govermmental activities
in the statement of net assets esre differsnt because:
Capital amsets used in govermmental activities are mot
financial resources and tharefore are not reported ag aseets
in the governmental fundg, net of accumulated depreciation of
$ 16,466,349 36,129,984
Other long-texm assets are not avallable to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the fundg 30,584
Internal pervice funds are used by management to charge the costs of self
funding of the County’s health ingurance benefit plan to individual funds.
The aggets and liabillties of the internal service fund are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets 190,531
Other liabilities, including bornds payable and accrued
interest, are not due and payable im the Surrent period mnd
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the fuunds
Bonds payable (2,565,000)
Notes payablae (226,452)
Compensated sbsences (180,305)
Accrusd interest {11,997)
Net assets of governmental activities s 39,228,014
Cash and pooled investmants of govermmental activities include the following reclassifications:
Internal earvice fund cash at Jume 30, 2005 S 400,003

See Notes to Financial Btatemeote.



REVENUESH
Property and cother Counkby tas
Intereat and penalty on properby tax
Intergoveronental
Licengaea and pormits
Charges for aerxvice
Use of money and preoperty
Miscellansous

Totnl revenuan

EXPENDITURES

Current
Public mafety and legal services
Physical haalth and scolal services
Mental health
County suvironment and education services
Roads and transportatlon
Governmental eervicea to reaidents
Administrative services
RNonprogram

Debt sarvice

Cepital project

Total expenditures

EXCRS88 {(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUEE OVER
{UNDER} EXPENWNDITURER

OTHER FINANCIMNG SOURCES (USES)
Tranafaers in
Proceeds foom diesposal of capltal assetse
Transfers out

WINNESHIRK COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERMMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2005

EXHIBIT D

EXCESH (DEFICIENCY) OF REVERUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINAMNCING USES

FUND BALANCES, beginmning of year, restated

FUND BALANCES, end of year

fae Notes to Floancial Htatements.

Speciml Heveanua Other Total
Manktal Fural Bacondary Govarnnental Governmental
daneral Haalth Bexrvices Roads Funds Fundsa

s 2,908,777 1,257,043 E 2,189,067 3 15%,367 3 6,607,254
51,139 51,129
1,277,438 923,747 229,011 L 3,522,741 43, 44) 5,996,378
950 13,138 894 14,965
529,181 8,627 194 16,533 554,535
249,263 3,701 252,964
74,082 1,116 11,237 18,153 104,550
5,087,820 2,181,906 2,451,067 1,541,284 319,042 13,581,819
1,220,379 347,991 1,368,370
1,296,532 id, 669 9,646 1,350,847
1,973,584 1,973,584

502,799 466,613 965,412
95,788 4,369,157 4,464,945

245,235 8.5%4 22,023 275,852
1,213,439 1,213,439
3,317 3,317
569,658 569,658

429,151 1,959,176 1,479,367
4,501,892 1,973,384 963,655 5,420,333 601,327 13,868,791
185,929 240,332 1,487,412 {1,8086,349) {282,285) (286,972)
1,548,540 109,933 1,098,463

562 48,330 48,832
(435,609} {1,422, 854) {1,838,461)
{435,107} {1,422,0854]) 1,596,870 309,523 48,832
{243,178} 29e,322 6,558 (289,479} 27,638 {238,140}
2,179,698 1,360,711 608,947 1,738,934 310,559 6,096,049
] 1,530,519 1,465,032 5 573,50% ¥ 1,449,455 s 338,197 $ 5,860,709




EXEIBIT D

(Continued)
WIRMNESEIERK COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENDES, EXPENDITURES AND CHAMGES IN FUND BALANCESR
GOVERNMERTAT, PONDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Raconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
of govermmental fundg to the statement of activities
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ {238,140)

Amountp reported for govermumental activities in the
statement of activitiee are different because:
Capital outlays to purchase or bulld capital assets are rxeported in
govermmental funds as expenditures. Bowever, for governmental
activities those costs are e¢hown in the statement of net assets and
allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation
expenses in the statement of activities. This is the amouant by
whichk capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the pericd
Depreciation $ (1,681,363)
Capital outlays 3,732,442 2,081,079

Because gsome revenuas will not be collected for several months after the
County’sa year end, they are not consldsred available revenues and are
deferred in the governmantal fundsg
Property tax 24,604

The net effect of dleposal of capital sssets (31,120)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the
govermeental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilicies in the
statement of net assetes and does not affect ths statement of
activities 471,084

Interest on long-term debt in the stmtement of activities differs
from the amount reported in the govermmental funds because
interest is recorded as an expenditure in the funds when due.
In the statement of activities, however, interest sxpensge is
recognized as the interest accrues, regardlesgs of when it is due 1,650

The internal cervice fund ig uzed by management to chmarge the costs of
erployee health benaefits to individual funde. Ths net revenne of the
internal service fund is reported with goverpmental activities (36,404)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do mot require
tha use of current fipnancial resources and, therefore, are mot
reported as expenditures in governmental funds
Compensated abgences (48,246)

Change in net aasets of governmental activities S 2,223,607

See Notesg to Financial gtatements.
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AFSETS
Cash and pooled investments
Racelvableas
AQgounte

Acorued interest receivable
Due from cthexr governments

Total current aspets

Nonourrent asasta
Land
Nat capltal assets

Totnl nonourréent assets
Total angets

LIABYLITIES AND MET ASSETS
Liabnilities

fBalaries and bensfitp payable
Acoruad intarest payable
Dua to other funds
Long-term liabilities

Notes payable

Compensated abrences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent limbilitles
Long-term debt

Total liabilities
Not assets
Invested in capital mssets, net of related debt

Reatricted
Unregtricted

Total net assets

Total liabilitcles and net masets

Seam Notes to Filonancial Btatements.

WINNESHIEK COUNTY

STATEMENT OF WET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 3005

EXHIBIT =

Govermnental
Businesg-type Activitias activitiaes
Nonmadox
Enterprige Internal
Landfill Fundsg Total Service
8 47,819 -] 47,819 g 400,003
1,172 1,172
582
$ 12,366 12,366
12,366 48, 991 §1,357 4c0,5085
9,792 9,792
733,294 975,976 1,708,270
732,294 385,768 1,718,062 -
5 T44,660 § 1,034,759 & 1,779,419 $ 400,585
§ 774 $ 774 8 219,054
8 111 111
16,683 16,683
1,451 1,451
18,508 111 19,019 210,054
217,719 217,719
18,9080 217,830 236,739 210,084
732,294 768,049 1,500,343
213,112 213,112
{6,542) {164, 232) {170,774) 190,531
725,752 816,929 1,542,681 190,531
] Td4,660 8 1,034,759 5 1,779,419 5 400,585

1L



WINRNESHIEE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETSH
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

EXHIBIT F

Foverumental
Businesa~type Activities Aotivities
Nonmajoxr
Enterprige Inotexnal
Landfill Funde Total Service
DPERATING REVENUES
Charges for aervice % 32,622 g 33,832 5 €26,581
Contract sexvices ] 163,358 163,358
Total opsrating revenues 163,358 32,822 186,180 526,981
OPERATING EXPENSES
Wagee and benafits 160,033 4,264 164,297
Depletion 61,582 61,582
Depreciaticn id, 646 24,646
Other : 7,612 T.612
Ingurance c¢laima paid 446,984
Adminlistrative fees 227,342
Total operating expenses 221,615 16,512 258,137 574,336
Operating lose (58,257) {3,700} (61,957) (47,345}
NONOPERATING REVENUEE (EXPEMEES)
Interest incoms ag2 kLY 10,941
Interest axpanas {10,408) {10,408}
Neat nonoparating revenues [(expenasg) - (10, 0486) (10,046) 10,941
Income before contributions and transfers (58,.257) (13,746} (72,003) (36,404}
TRANSFERS
Tranafer in 28, 520 29,520
Transfer out {28,520) {28,530}
Change in net agRets (58,257) (13,746} (72,003) {36,404)
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 784,009 830,675 1,614,684 226,935
BET A3SETS., end of year s 725,752 & 816,929 § 1,542,681 $ 150,531

Bee Notes to Financlal Statements,
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WINNEOHIEE COUNTY

ETATEVENT OF CASH FIOWH

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recaived from contradgt labor
Cagh received from charges for services
Cash payments to employess for mervicas
Caah payments to suppliers for services

Net <¢ash provided by {(used in) operating activities

CASH PLOWE FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfers in
Operating tranefaers {(out)

Naet opsh provided by noncapltal finmancing activities

CAOE FLOWS FROM CAPXTAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITLES
Principal payments on notes payabla
Interest paid on long-~term Lorrowlng

Net onsh used in ocapital and related finanging activities

CRSH PLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on lnveatmentwe

Nat increase (Jegrense) in caeh and cash squivalents
CASH and CASH EQUIVALENTS, baginning of year
CASHE and CAAH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

Regonoiliation of operxatiog ioss to nek cash
provided Yy {(usad in) operating actlivities
operating loea
Adjuatmentas to reccnclile operating losa

to nat cash provided by (umed im)
operating activities

Dapreclation and depleticn

Decrease in accounts receivable

Inorease in accounts payable

{(Increama} In due from othar goveruments
Increase in palaries and benefits payeable
Increase ln deferred ravenus

Dacresnaa in agorued compensated absences

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activirties

faa Notes to Finsmncial Skatements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For tha Year Ended June 30,

EXHIBIT G

2005
Governmental
Businmag-type Activitlas Activitiesa
NonmaJor
Enterprise Intarmal
Landfill Funds Total Service
$ 160,033 & 160,033
5 36,609 16,609 $ 628,751
(160,031) (4,264) {164,257)
(7,612} {7,612) (641,302)
- 14,733 24,7133 {12,752}
28,520 28,532¢
(28,520) (28,520)
(3,1865) (3,1565)
{10,401) (10,401)
- {13,566) (13,566)
361 361 11,87%
- 11,528 11,528 (872)
- 36,291 36,291 400,875
5 - 4 47,819 El 417,819 § 400,003
$ (58,157) & (3,700) 3 (81,957) § (47.345)
61,582 24,646 86,128
3,787 3,787
32,813
(425) {425)
1,599 1,559
1,771
(4,499} (4,499)
4 - 3 24,733 $ 24,7123 § (12,751)



ASSETS
Cash and pooled investmente
County Treasurer
Other County officials
Receivablenr
Property taw
Dalinquent
Suceeceding year
Accounts
Accrued interest
Due from otber governments
Prepaid insurance

Total aspets

LIABILYTIES
Accounte payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Due to othexr goveraments
Trusts payable
Compensated zbsences

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

See Notes to Fipancial Statements.

WINNESHIEK COUNTY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

AGENCY PFUNDS

June 30,

14

2005

§ 1,108,185
7,328

7,907
15,491,547
21,038

207

3,994
1,480

S 16,648,694

$ 3,818
6,667
16,635,737
1,403

1,069

$ 16,648,694

S None



1.

WINNESHTER COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

a.

Nature of Operatiomns

Winneshiek County 18 a political subdivision of the State of Iowa
and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of Iowa.
The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of goverrment.
Elections are on a partisan basis. Other elected officials operate
independently with the Board of Supervisors. These officials are the
Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Sheriff and Attorney. The County provides
numerous services to citizens, including law enforcement, health and
social services, parks and cultural activities, planning and zoning,
roadway construction and maintenance, and general administrative
services,

Significant Accounting Policies

Scope of Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, Winneshiek County has included
all funds, organizationa, account groups, agencies, boards, ccammissions,
and authorities. The County has also considered all potemtial campoment
units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
County are such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial
statements to be misleading or incamplete. The Govermnmental Accounting
standards Board hag set forth criteria to be considered in determining
financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting
majority of an organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the
County to impose its will on that organization, or (2) the potemtial for
the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the County; or the organizatiorn is fiscally
dependent on the primary govermnment. Also, any other organizations that
due to the nature of significance of their relationship with the County
should be included in the financial statements as camponent units. The
County has no component units which meet the Govermmental Accounting
Standards Board criteria.

Jointly Govermed Organizations

The County participates in several jointly governed organizatioms
that provide goods or services to the citizenry of the County but do
not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there 1isg no ongoing
financial interest or respomsibility by the participating govermments.
The County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint
representatives to the following boards and commissions: Winneshiek
County Assessor’s Conference Board, Northeast Iowa Mental Health
Center, Emergency Management Services, Winneshiek County Area Solid
Waste Agency and Winneshiek County Joint E-911 Service Board.
Financial transactions of these organizations are included in the
County’s financial statements only to the extent of the County’s
fiduciary relationship with the organization and, as such, are
reported in agency funds of the County.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the County.
Governmental activities are supported by property tax and
intergovermmental revenues and other non-exchange transactions are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.

15



1‘

NOTES TO FINANCIAY, STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b‘

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the
direct expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, sexrvices,
or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants, contributions
and interest that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Property tax and other items not

properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for govermmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds, sven though the latter are excluded

from the govermnment-wide £financial statements. Major individual
governmental and proprietary funds are reported as separate columms in
the fund financlal statements. All remaining governmental and

enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as other nonmmajor
governmental and other nommajor enterprise funds. The internal service
fund is presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements.

The funds of the finmancial reporting entity are described below:

Govermmental

General Fund

The general fund accounts for all the financial resources of
the County, except for those required to be accounted for by
other fundg. The revenues of the general fund are primarily
derived from general property taxes, charges for services,
licenses and permits, and certain revenues from state and
federal sources. The expenditures of the gemneral €fund primarily
relate to general admipistration, public safety and 1legal
services, physgical health and social services, county
enviromment and education sexrvices, govermnmental services to
residents and administrative services.

Special Revenue Funds

The special revenue funds are used to account for revenues
derived fram specific sources which are usually required by law
or regulation to be accounted for in separate funds. Thse funds
in this category are rural services, secondary roads, and Memtal
Health/Development Disabilities (MH/DD) Services.

16



NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Coantinued)

b. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Comtinued)

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Fund

Enterprisce funds are used to account for operations and
activities that are financed and operated in a matter similar
to a private business enterprise and where the costs of
providing goods or services to the gemeral public on a
continuing basis are expected to be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges ox where the County has decided
that periodic determination of revenues earmed, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management comntrol, accountability,
or other purposes. One enterprise fund of the County is used
to account £or the lease of the landfill to the Winneshiek
County Arxea Solid Waste Agency and contract labor provided to
the Agency by the County.

Internal Service Fund

Internal service fund is utilized@ to account for the
financing of health insgurance provided to the employees of the
variocus departments of the County.

Fiduciary Fund Types
Agency Funds
The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
County in a trustee or custodial capacity for other entities,
such as individual, or other governmental units.

Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions
are recorded within the variocus financial statements.

On the government-wide statement of net assets and the statement
of activities, both govermmental and business-type activities are
presented using the "“economic resources” measurement focus as defined
below in item b.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial
resources” msasurcment £focus or the “ecopnomic resources” measurement
focusg is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental fund financial statements are accounted for
on current financial resources measurement focus. This means
that only ourrent asgsets and current liabilities are
ganerally included on their balance sheets. Their reported
fund balance is comsidered a measure of “available spendable
rasouxrces.” Govermmental fund operating statements present
increases, revenues and other financing sources, and
decreases, expenditures and other financing uses in fund
balances. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of
sources and uses of "available spendable resouxces” during a
pexiod.

17



1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operatiomns and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus (Continued)

b. The proprietary funds are accounted for on ecomomic resources
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all
liabilities, whether curremt or nomn-current, associated with
their activity are included on their statements of net
assets. In reportinmg the financial activity on the
proprietary fund statements, the County applies all
applicable GASB pronouncements. As allowed in Section P80 of
GASB’s Codification of Govermmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards, the County has elected not to apply to
its proprietary activities Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Resesarch Bulletins of the
Commnittee of Accounting Procedure issued after November 30,
1989.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the fimancial
statements. Bagis of accounting zrelates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The govermment-wide and proprietary fumnds are accounted for using
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are raecognized as earned, and
expenses are recognized when incurred. Property tax is recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recogmnized as revenue as scon as all eligibility reguirements
imposed by the provider have been gatisfied. Thig differs fram the
manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared.
Therefore, govermmental fund financial statements include reconciliation
with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the statememts for govermmental funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revemues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in comnection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenmues of the County’s enterprise funds are charges to
custamers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise
funds include the cost of sales and gervices, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capitel assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

All governmmental funds are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenueg are recorded when they become both measurable and
available. Available means collected within the curremt period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabillties of the current periocd.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are
recorded when the liability is incurred, if measurable, except for
unmatured interest om general long-term debt, which is recognized when
due. Disburseaments for the purchase of assets providing future bemefits
are racorded as expenditures at time of purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Comntinued)

b. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basig of Accounting (Continued)

Revenues susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis
of accounting are property tax, intergovermmental revenue (shared
revenues, grants and reimbursements from other govermments), and charges
for service and interest revenue. Revenues from licenses and permits,
fines and forfeitures, refunds and reimbursements and other
miscellarecus sourcaes are generally recognized when received in cash as
they are generally not measurable until actually received.

The County maintains its financial records on the cash basis. The
financial statements of the County ere prepared by making memorandum
adjusting entries to the cash basis financial records.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the
fipancial statements:

Cash Management, Cash Eguivalents, and Investments

The County Treasurer maintains two primary dJdemand deposit
accounts through which the majority of the County’s cash resources
are processed.

The cash balances of most County funds are pooled and
invested. Interest earned on investments is recorded in the
general fund, unless otherwise provided by law. Investments are
stated at fair value except for the investment in the Iowa Public
Agency Investment Trust which is valued at amortized cost and non-
negotiable certificates of deposit which are stated at cost.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all short-term
cash investments that are highly liquid are considered to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, and at the day of purchase, they have a maturity
date no longer than three months.

Property Tax Receivable
Property taxes in the governmmental funds are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Propexrty tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the
levy date, which is the date that the tax asking is certified by

the County Board of Supervisors. Delingquent property taxes
receivable represents unpaid taxes for the current and prior
years. The succeeding year property tax receivable represents

taxes certified by the Board of Supervisors to be collected in the
next fiscal year for the purposes set out in the budget for the
next fiscal vyear. By statute, the Board of Supervisors is
required to certify its budget in March of each year for the
subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the tax asking and
budget certification for the following £fiscal vear becames
effective on the first day of that year. 2although the succeeding
year property tax receivable has been recorded, the related
revenue is deferred in both the govermment-wide and €fund financial
astatements and will not be recognized as revenue until the vear
for which it is levied.
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

Nature of Operatioms and Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

b.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Eguity (Continued)

Interfund Transactions

During the course of its operatiomns, the County has mmmerous
transactions between funds. To the extent that certain
trangsactions between funds had not been paid or received as of
June 30, 2005, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable
have been recorded in the fund financial statements. Most of the
interfund transactions have been eliminated on the govermnment-wide
statements.

Due from Other Governments

Due fram other govermments represents amounts due from the
State of Iowa, various shared revenues, grants, and reimbursements
fram other govermments.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost using the f£irst-in, first-out
method. Inventories in the 8pecial revenue funds comsist of

expendable supplies held for consumption. The costs of inventory
items are recordaed as expenditures in the governmental fund types
and expenses in the proprietary fund types whem usged. Reported
inventories in the govermmental fund financial gtatements are
equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they
are not available to ligquidate current cbligations.

Prepaid Expenditures

Payments made for insuvrance for a future period beyond June
30, 2005 are recorded as prepaid inpurance. The fund balances in
the governmemtal fund types have been reserved for the prepaid
expenditures recorded in those funds. This reflects the amount of
net assets not currently available for expenditure.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, equipment and
vehicles, and infrastrvcture assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
govermment-wide statement of net assets. When purchased, such
agsets are recorded as expenditures in the govermmental funds and
capitalized. Capital assets in the proprietary fund are
capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. Capital
assets are racorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost 1if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintemnance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend asset 1lives are not
capitalized. The County is in the process of gathering information
and has not included equipment used witkhin the county offices.
Reportable capital asgsets are defined by the County as assets with
initial, individual costs in excess of the following thresholds
and estimated usgeful lives in excess of two vears:

Land, buildings and improvementsg $25,000
Equipment and wvehicles 5,000
Infrastructure, road networks 50,000
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities amd Fund Eguity (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Property and equipment of the County is depreciated using the
straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 25-50
Land improvements 10-50
Equipment 3-20
Vehicles 5-15
Infrastructure, rocad network 10-65

For the year ended June 30, 2005, depletion is recorded on
the landfill using the useful life of 27 years.

Due to Other Governments
Due to other governmants represents taxes and other revenues

collected by the County and payments for services which will be
remitted to other govermments.

Trusts Payable

Trusts payable representgs amounts due to others which are
held by various County officials in fiduciary capacities until the
underlying legal matters are resolved.

Deferred Revenue

In the fund €financial statements certain revenues are
measurable they are not available. Deferred revenue represents
the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related
revenue has not been recognized since the assets are not collected
within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Deferred revenue consists of unspent grant proceeds, the
succeeding year property tax receivable as well as delinquent
property tax receivables and other receivables not collected
within sixty dJdays after year end. Deferred revenue on the
statement of net assets consist of succeeding year property tax
receivable that will not be recognized as revenue until the year
for which it is levied.

Long-term Obligations

In the govermment-wide financlal statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
govermmental activities column in the statement of net assets.

In the governmental fund £inancial statements, the face
amount of debt issuved is reported as other financing sources.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Aggets, Liabilitieg and Fund Equity (Continued)
Campensated Absences

County employees receive vacation leave at the following

rates:
Years of Service Vacation Credited on Anniversary Date
After 1 35 hours - 1 week
2 70 hours - 2 weeks
8 105 houre - 3 weeks
12 140 hours - 4 weeks

Employees may accumlate up to 20 days vacation.

June 30, 2005 is $182,825.

In accordance with the Code of Iowa Chapter 509A.13 the
Employvees
retiring before attaining sixty-five years of age may continue
participation in the plan at their own expense until the employee

County provides post-employment health care benefits.

attains siwty-five years of age.

Fund Balance

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservation of
fund balances are reported for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose. Reserved fund balances are used first when
an expenditure isg incurred for purposes for both reserved and

unreserved fund balances.

Net Assats

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of
capital assets net of accumilated deprecistion and reduced by the
or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, comstruction,

outstanding balance of any bonds, mortgages, notes,

or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets comsists of net assets with constraints
creditors,

placed on the use either externally imposed by
grantors, contributors or laws and regulations

governmments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Restricted net assets are used first when
an axpense is incurred for purposes for both regtricted and

unrestricted net agsets.
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Sick leave
accrues at the rate of two days per month and employees may
sccumlate up to 120 days sick leave. These accumlations are not
recognized as expenditures by the County until used. The County’s
policy prohibits payoff of accumulated sick leave at termination
of amployment. Consequently, no liability for accumulated sick
leave at June 30, 2005 has been determined or presented. In
accordance with GASB Statement 16, the County has accrued the
liability for accrued vacation leave in the accampanying fund
financial statements. A liability is recorded when incurred in
the govermment wide and fiduciary fund financial statements.
County’s approximate maximmm liability for accrued vacation pay at



1.

NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Agsets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Contipued)
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported
as required supplementary information.

Ravenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Property tax revenue recognized in the govermmental funds become
due and collectible in September and March of the fiscal year with a
1¥% per month penalty for delinguent payments; is based on Januvary 1,
2003 assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July
1, 2004 through June 30, 2005 and reflects the tax asking contained in
the budget certified by the County Board of Supervisors in March,
2004.

Interest and penalty on property tax receivable represents the
amount of interest and penalty that was due and payable but has not been
collected.

Federal and state grants, primarily capital grants, are recorded
as revenue when the expenditures for the purpose of the grant have been
incurred. Substantially all other shared revenues are recorded during
the period when received frcm the collecting authority, the State of
Iowa.

Deposits and Invegstments

The County’s deposits in banks at June 30, 2005 were entirely covered by
federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking PFund in accordance with
Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for additional
assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of
public funds.

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in
obligationsg of the Uuited States government , its agencies and
ingtrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at
fedexrally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of
Supervisors; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated
camercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-
end managemeunt investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and
warrants and improvement certificates of a drainage district.

Investments are stated at fair value. Securities traded on a natiomal
or iptermational exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at
current exchange rates.

In addition, the County bhad investments in the Iowa Public Agency
Investment Trust which are valued at an amortized cost of $504,007 pursunant
to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and are not subject to
credit risk categorization.
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NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

Depositg and Investments (Contlnued)

Interest rate risk

The County’s investment policy limits the investment of operating
funds (funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or
within 15 months of receipt) in instruments that mature within 397 days.
Punds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments
with maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be
consistent with the needs and use of the County.

Credit risk
The investment in Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

Due from Other Governmentsg
Due from other governmemts consist of the following at June 30, 2005:

Governmental
General fund
Department of Human Service reimbursement 8 1,244
Medicaid . 38,278
Medicare 28,011
Othar 207,537
275,070
Special revenue
Mental health fund
Other 4,284
Rural service fund
Local option sales tax 162,363
Secondary roads fund
Road use tax 324,487
Other 2,082
326,578
Nonmajor govermnmental fund
Winneshiek County sanitarian 4,770
Total governmental 773,066
Business-type
Proprietary
Finance agreement landfill 12,366
§ 785,432
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Capital Agsets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30,

follows:

Govermmental activities
Land

Infrastructure in progress

Capital assgets being depreciated

Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Lass accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Equipmaent
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciatiomn

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
Capital assets, net

Business-type activities
Land

Capital assets
being depraciated or depleted
Equipment
Landfill

Total capital assets
being depreciated or depleted

Less accumulated depreciation
or depletion
Equipment
Landfill

Total accumilated depreciation
or depletion

Total capital assets
being depreciated or
depleted, net

Businass-type activities
Capital assets, net

2005, was as
Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2004 Additions Deletions 2005
$ 450,125 § 37,800 $§ 3,635 % 484,290
1,634,000 1,647,062 1,634,000 1,647,062
2,084,125 1,684,862 1,637,635 2,131,352
7,480,710 296,490 29,200 7,748,000
5,542,040 423,075 108,145 5,856,966
33,898,000 2,962,015 36,860,015
46,920,750 3,681,580 137,349 50,464,981
2,331,688 180,432 26,645 2,485,475
2,178,507 341,490 83,219 2,436,778
10,414,655 1,129,441 11,544,096
14,924,850 1,651,363 105,864 16,466,345
31,995,900 2,030,217 27,485 33,958,632
$§34,080,025 £3,715,079 $1,665,120 $36,129,984
S 9,792 $ 95,792
1,178,773 1,178,773
1,653,700 1,653,700
2,832,473 2,832,473
178,150 $ 24,646 202,7%6
859,825 61,582 921,407
1,037,975 86,228 1,124,203
1,794,498 (86,228) 1,708,270
$ 1,804,290 § (86,228) & None §$ 1,718,062
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functioms of the primary government
as follows:

Govermmental activities

Public safety and legal services $ 101,625
Physical health and social services 86,689
Mental health 12,429
County environment and education 5,873
Roads and trangportation 1,444,747

$ 1,651,363

Business-type activities

Burr Oak sewer fund s 12,830
Festina sewexr fund 11,816

$ 24,646

Due to Other Govermments

The County purchases services fram other govermmental units and also
acts as a fee and tax collection agemnt for various govermmental units. Tax
collections are rzremitted to those governmments in the month following
collection. A summary of amounts due to other govermments is as follows:

Govermental
General fund Services $ 136,240
Special revenue fund
MH/DD Services 198,409
Total for govermmental s 334,648
Fiduciary
Agency
County assessor Cellections (] 320,117
8chools 10,874,571
Area schools 456,192
Corporations 3,209,021
Auto license and use tax 358,935
Othexr 1,416,501
Total for agency funds $16,635,737

Pension and Retirement Benefits

The County contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System
(IPERS) which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer dJdefined benefit pension
plan administered by the State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death
benefits, which are established by state statute to plan members and
beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial zeport that
includes €£inancial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.0O. Box 95117, Des Moines, Iowa,
50306-9117.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension and Retirement Benefits (Comtinued)

Plan members are required to comtribute 3.70% of their annual covered
salary and the County is reguired to contribute 5.75% of amnual covered
payroll except for law enforcement employees, in which case the percentages
for the year ended June 30, 2005 are 5.10% and 7.66%, respectively. For the
vyear ended June 30, 2004, the contribution rates for law enforcement
employees and the County were 4.99% and 7.48%, respectively, and for the vear
ended June 30, 2003, the contribution rates for law enforcement emplovees and
the County were 5.37% and 7.48%, respectively. Cocntribution requirements are
established by state statute. The County’s contribution to IPERS for the
years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $237,578, $229,340, and
§221,374, respectively, equal to the regquired contributions for each year.

Construction, Purchase and Other Cammitments
The total outstanding construction and purchase commitments of the
County at June 30, 2005 amount to $860,212.

The Board of Supervisors has agreed to provide Oneota Riverview Care
Facility financial support of $46,000 per vyear for repairs and maintenance
for the period July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006.

The County has entered into an agreement with the City of Decorah for an
aerial fire truck. 'The County will contribute $£5,000 a vear through Junme 30,
2008.

The County entered into a 28E Agreement with Allamakee County to share
the cost of the CPC personnel. Each county will pay fifty percent of wages
and benefits. The agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such
time as the BRoard of Supervisors for one of the participating counties passes
a resolution withdrawing from the agreement and provides at least sixty days
notice before the withdrawal is effective.

The County entered into an agreement to administer a $500,000 CDBG grant
to help fund a child care center for NICC Calmar Campus.

The County entered into a union contract with the Sheriff’s department
that is in effect fram July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006.

The County has entered into an agreement with Vesterheim Museum to pay
$10,000 over the next two vears to fulfill a match requirement for a grant.

Leases
The City of Decorah has leased land to Winneshiek County under a 99 year
lease for $§1 per vear for the Sheriff's office and jail.

The City of Decorzh has leased space to Winneshiek County within the
City’s Police Department for $94,303 from July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006.

The County has agreed to lease the recycling building to Spectrum
Industries, Inc. for 99 years starting October 1, 1995. The lease reqQuires
$1 payments each year.

The County has agreed to lease land to Winneshiek County Area Solid
Waste Agency until December 2013.

The County ig leasing land to various entities for a nominal fee over
long-term arrangements in associatiom with the health campus.

Future lease payments under these agreements are ag follows:
Year ended June 30, 2005 $ 94,303
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Long-texrm Debt Obligations
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 was as
follows:
Balance Balance Amounts
June 30, June 30, Due Within
2004 Issued (Paid) 2005 One Year

Govermmental activities
General Obligation Bonds

County refunding $1,535,000 $ (150,000) $1,345,000 $ 195,000
County jail bonds 1,395,000 (175,000) 1,220,000 185,000
Total bonds 2,930,000 (365,000) 2,565,000 380,000
Other liabilities
Notes/leases payable 332,576 (106,084) 226,492 84,834
Campensataed absences 131,159 §$180,305 (1.31,159) 180,305 180, 305
Total other liabilities A63,735 180,305 (237, 243) 406,797 265,139

Govermmental activities
Long-term liabilities §3,363,735 £180,305 35 (602,243) 42,971,797 § 645,139

Business-type activities
Other liabilities

Notes payable § 220,857 $ (3,138) § 217,719
Campensated absences 5,950 $ 1,451 (5,950) 1,451 § 1,451
Total other liabilities 226,807 1,451 (5,088) 219,170 1,451

Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities § 226,807 $§ 1,451 3 (9,088) § 219,170 § 1,451

General Obligation Bonds

On December 1, 1993 the County issued $2,210,000 of Gemeral Obligation
County Refunding Bonds. The proceeds of these bonds were used to refinance
existing debt. The issue of bonds bears interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.75%
and matures from Jume 2006 to Jume 2011. The County’s intent in the sale was
to take advantage of lower interest rates.

On April 1, 1995 the County issuved General Obligation County Jail Bonds
worth $2,165,000. The proceeds from this igsue were used to finance
construction of the new jail. The issue of bonds bears interest ranging from
4.15% to 4.55% and matures from June 1, 2006 to June 1, 2011.

Notes Payable
Department of Natural Resources
In September 1595, the County entered into an agreement with the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to finance construction of a
recycling building for Spectrum Industries, Inc. The note is non-
interest bearing and requires quarterly payments of $6,208 from July 15,
2005 to October 15, 2006.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Long-term Debt Obligations (Continued)

Notes Payable (Continued)

USDA Rural Development

In April 1993 the County issued revenue notes totaling $105,000 at
5% interest due in annual payments of §$6,226 starting July 1995 through
2032. These notes were used to partially finance the Burr 0Oak Sewer
Project, and are recorded in the enterprise fu=nd. Interest expense of
$§4,635 is reported in the Burr Oak Sewer enterprise fund. The County
prepaid the payment in June 2005.

In April 2000 the County issued revenue notes totaling $132,500 at
4.5% interest due in annual payments of $7,342 starting July 2003 through
2035. These notes were issued to partially £inance the Festina
Wastewater Collection and Treatment System Project. Interest expense of
§5,773 is reported in the Festina Sewer anterprise fund. The County
prepaid the payment in June 2005.

Security State Bank
In May 2004 the County entered an agreement with 8Security State
Bank to partially finance construction of the mnew County jail. The note

was for $245,000 at 2.4% interest and matures fraom June 1, 2006 to June
1, 2008.

A summary of the principal and interest maturities by type of debt is as
follows:

Governmental Activities
Year ending Notes/leases Payable General Obligation Bonds

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 84,834 $ 4,623 § 380,000 § 127,409
2007 76,658 3,163 395,000 109,885
2008 65,000 1,586 420,000 90,955
2009 435,000 70,155
2010 455,000 48,254
2011 480,000 24,905
Subtotal 226,492 5,372 2,565,000 471,567

Business-type Activities
Year ending Notes/lLeases Payable General Obligation Bonds

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 3,315 § 10,253

2008 3,473 10,085

2009 3,638 9,930

2010 3,810 9,758

2011 3,992 9,576

2012-2016 22,995 44,846

2017-2021 28,005 38,831

2022-2026 36,606 31,234

2027-2031 46,191 21,649

2032-2036 38,446 11,964

2037~-2041 26,244 4,469

Subtotal 217,718 202,605 $§ None § None

$ 444,211 § 211,977 § 2,565,000 $ 471,567
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Long-term Debt Obligations (Continued)
At June 30, 2005, the debt issued by the County did not exceed its legal
debt margin compiled as follows:

Total assessed valuation $1,108,521,601
Debt limit - 5% of total assessed valuation $ 55,426,080

Dabt applicable to debt limit
General obligation bonded debt ocutstanding (2,565,000)
Othexr debt (559,046)
L.egal debt margin s 52,302,034

10. Due to/fram Other Funds
As of June 30, 2005, interfund receivables and payables that resulted
from varioug interfund transactions were as follows:

Due fraom Due to
Other Funds Other Funds

General fund $ 88,682
Special revenmue funds

Rural services 16,683
Nommajor govermnmental funds 2,266
Enterprise funds

Landfill S 16,683
Agency funds 90,948

107,631 $ 107,631

11. Interfund Transgsfers
The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as

follows:
Transfers Transfers
In out
General fund
Secondary roads s 125,686
Nommajor governmental 309,923
435,609
Spec¢ial revenue
Rural sexvices 1,422,854
Secondary roads § 1,548,540

1,548,540 1,422,854

Normajor governmental 308,923 None
Total $§ 1,858,463 §$ 1,858,463

Transferg generally move resources fram the fund statutorily required to
collect the resources to the fund statutorily regquired to expend the
resources.
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13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS

Fund Equity

The amounts restricted at June 30, 2005 axre as follows:

Restricted net assets
General fund

Equity in insurance pool $ 10,589
Forfeiture 15,370
25,959

Special revenue fund
Mental health 1,468,801
Rural services 670,497
Secondary roads 1,145,430
Nonmajor governmental funds 264,456
3,549,184
$ 3,575,143

Restricted net assets
Proprietary funds
Nonmajor proprietary funds $ 213,112

The amounts raserved at June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Reserved fund balances
General fund

Prepaid expenditures $ 19,632
Equity in insurance pool 10,589
Forfeiture 15,370

45,591

Special revenue fund
Mental health

Prepaid expenditures 715
Rural services

Prepaid expenditures 3,330
Secondary roads

Inventories 289,225

Prepaid expenditures 14,800

308,074

$ 353,665

Joint Venture

The County is a participant in the Winneshiek County Area Solid Waste
Agency. The County has agreed to guarantee revenue to the agency from County
residents. The guarantee eguals base year usage by County residents as a
percentage of all base year usage sufficient to fund 62,000,000 of bonded
indebtedness amortized over 12 years. The guarantee isg an automatically
renewable 5 year commitment. The County appoints a member to the agency board
and is guaranteed access to the landfill so long as it is & member. The
agency board sets tonnage fee rates which are charged to contracted haulers
who are responsible for garbage collection and billing and collecting fraom
local residents. Audited financial statements of Winneshiek County Area
Solid Waste Agency are available at the Agency’s office located at 2000 140%™
Avenue, Decorah, IA 52101.
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15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accrued Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

Since the County owns the land and leases it to the Winneshiek County
Area Sclid Waste Agency, it is ultimately responsible for the closure and
postclosure cost of the landfill., The County is under the understanding that
the Agency will cover these costs through their operations. The landfill

site ig curremtly regulated by the Iowa Department of Natural Resources
{DNR) .

DNR regulations regquire that the Agency place a final cover om its
lapdfill when closed and perform certain maintensnce and monitoring functioms
at the 1landfill site for thirty years after c¢losure. In addition to
operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense
provision and related liability are being recognized based on the future
closure and posgtclosure care costs that will be incurred near or after the
date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The recogrition of these landfill
closure and postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the landfill
used during the year. The estimated liability for landfill closure and
postclosure care costs has a balance of $2,674,610 as of June 30, 2005, which
is based on 43% usage (filled) of the landfill. It is estimated that an
additional $3,204,640 will be recognized as closure and postclosure care
expenses between the date of the balance sheet and the date the landfill is
expected to ba filled to capacity (2025).

The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and postclosure
care ($5,879,250), as prepared by the Agency’s engineering consultant, is
based on the amount that would be paid if all eguipment, facilities, and
services regquired to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired
as of June 30, 2005. Closure and postclosure care costs charged to operations
for the yvear ended June 30, 2005 were £189,672. However, the actual cost of
closure and postclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in
technology, or changes inm landfill laws and regulations. This estimate is
reviewed annually by the Agency.

Additional costs that might arise from changes in postclosure
requirements (due to changes in technology or more rigorous environmental
regulations, for example) may need to be covered by charges to landfill users
and/or Agency equity.

Management believes that the Agency has materially complied with all
state laws and regulations regarding closure and postclosure care financial
assurance reguirements. The Agency has demonstrated financial assurance for
closure and postclosure care costs by using the bond rating test as provided
in Chapter 111.6(6) of the Iowa Administrative Code; accordingly, no County
assets have been specifically restricted for this puxpose. Management
intends to fund these costs throughout the life of the landfill.

Contingent Liabilities

The County participates in a number of federal and state programs that
are fully or partially funded by grants received from other govermnmental
units. Expenditures financed by grants were subjected to local audit but
still remain open to audit by the appropriate grantor government. If
expenditures are disallowed by the grantor govermment due to noncampliance
with grant program regulations, the County may be required to reimburse the
grantor government. As of June 30, 2005 significant amounts of grant
expenditures have not been audited by granting authorities but the County
believes that dizallowed expenditures, if any, based om subsegquent audits
will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds
or the overall financial position of the County.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS

Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

The County is currently contingently liable to perform environmental
clean up at two locations due to the Iowa Department of MNatural Resources
(DNR) c¢lassifying them as high risk sites. Proposals have been submitted to
the Iowa DNR outlining the County’s plans for clean up. As of June 30, 2005,
no ruling has been made by the Iowa DNR. As & result, no estimate can be made
of future clean up costs. Funds may be available from the Iowa Comprehensive

Petroleum Underground Storage Tank fund teo offset scme of these potential
costs.

The County has certain contingent liabhilities resulting from litigation
and claims incident to the ordinary course of business. Management believes
that the probable resolution of such contingencies will not materially affect
the financial position or results of operations of the County.

Risk Management

Winneshiek County is a member in the Iowa Cammunities Assurance Fool, as
allowed Dby Chapter 331.301 of the Code of Iowa. The Iowa Communities
Assurance Pool (Pool) is a local govermment risk-sharing pool with over 508
members f£rom various govermmental entities throughout the State of Iowa. The
Pool was formed in August 1986 for the purpose of managing and funding third-
party liablility claims against its members. The Pool provides coverage and

protection in the following categoriles: general liability, automobile
liability, automobile physical damage, public officials’ liability, police
professional liability, property and inland marine. There have been no

reductions in insurance coverage from prior years.

Each member’s annual casualty contributioms to the Pool fund current
operations and provide capital. Annual operating contributions are those
amounts necessary to fund, on a cash bagis, the Pool's general and
administrative expenses, claims, claims axpenses and reinsurance expenses due
and payable in the current year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in
capital. Capital contributiong are made during the £first six yearg of
membership and are maintained to egual 300 percent of the total current
members' basis rates or to camply with the requirements of any applicable
regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the Pool.

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such
coverage make annual operating contributions which are necessary to fund, on
a cash basis, the Pool's generzl and administrative expenses and reinsurance
premiums, all of which are due and payable in the curremt year, plus 2ll or
any portion of any deficiency in capital. Any yvear-end operating surplus is
transferred to capital. Deficiencies in operations are offset by transfers
from capital and, 1if insufficient, by the subsegquent vyear's member
contributions.

The County's property and casualty contributions to the risk pool are
recorded as expenditures from its operating funds at the time of payment to
the risk pool. Tha County's annual contributions to the Pool for the year
ended June 30, 2005 were §141,795.

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements to reduce
its exposure to large losgsed. The Pool retains general, autamobile, police
professional, and public officials' liability risks up to $250,000 per claim.
Claims exceeding $250,000 are reinsured in an amount not to exceed $1,750,000
per claim and §5,000,000 in aggregate per year. For members reguiring
specific coverage fram $2,000,000 to $10,000,000, such excess coverage is
also reinmsured. Property and automobile physical damage risks are retained by
the Pool up to $100,000 each occurrence, each location, with excess coverage
reingured on an individual-member basis.
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17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rigk Management (Continued)

The Pool’s intergoverrmental contract with its members provides that in
the event a casualty claim or series of claims exceeds the amount of risk-
sharing protection provided by the member’s risk-sharing certificate, or in
the event that a series of casualty claims exhausts total members’ equity
plus any reinsurance and any excess rigk-sharing recoveries, then payment of
such claims shall be the obligation of the respective individual member. The
County does not report a liability for losses in excess of reinsurance or
excesg rigk-sharing recoveries unless it is deemed probable that such losses
bhave occcurred and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated.
Accordingly, at June 30, 2005, no liability has been recorded in the County’s
financial statements. As of June 30, 2005, settled claims have not exceeded
the risk pool or reinsurance company coverage since the pool’s inception.

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not
less than ome full year. After such period, a member who has givean 60 days
prior written notice may withdraw from the Pool. TUpon withdrawal, payments
for all claimg and claim expernses become the sole responsibility of the
with@rawing member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred or reported
prior to the maember’s withdrawal. Members withdrawing within the first six
years of membership may zreceive a partial refund of their capital
contributions. If a member withdraws after the sixth year, the member is
refunded 100 percent of its capital contributions. However, the refund is
raduced by an amount equal to the annual operating contribution which the
withdrawing member would have made for the one-year period following
withdrawal.

The County also carries cammercial imnsurance purchased from other
insurers for coverage associated with workers campensation, the farm, the
boiler and employee blanket bond. The County assumes 1liability for any
deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitatiomns. The County assumes
responsibility for workers campensation and employee blanket bond claims in
excess of $500,000 and $100,000, respectively. Settled claims resulting from
thegse risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years.

Employee Bealth Insurance Plan

Winneshiek County is partially self-insured €or health insurance
coverage. The plan is funded by both employee and County comtributions and
is administered through a service agreement with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue
Shield of Iowa. The agreement is subject to automatic renewal prxovisions.
The County assumes liability for claims up to the individual stop loss
limitation of §20,000 and $821,811 overall annually. Claims in excess of
coverage are insured through purchase of stop loss insurance.

Monthly payments of service feeg and plan contributions to the County’s
health fund are recorded as expenditures fraom the operating funds. Under
administrative services agreement, monthly payments of service £fees and
claims processed are paid to Wellmark Blue Cxoss and Blue Shield of Iowa from
the County’s health fund. The County records the plan assets and related
liabilities of Winneshiek County health insurance fund as an internal service
fund. The County’s contribution to the fund@ for the year ended June 30, 2005
wag $£545,240.
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18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Employee Herlth Insurance Plan (Continued)

Amounts payable from the health insurance fund at June 30, 2005 total
$§210,054 which is for incurred but unpaid claims. The amounts are based omn
actuarial estimates of the =amounts necessary to pay prior-year and current-
vear claimg, and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. A liability
has been established based on the requirements of Government Accounting
Standards Boaxrd Statement MNumber 10, which reguires that a liability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred
at the date of the £financial statements and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Settlements have not exceeded the sgtop-loss coverage
in any of the past three years. An analysis of claims activity in the
internal service fund follows:

2005 2004
Beginning liability & 175,459 ¢ 139,807
Claimg and changes in estimates 476,811 311,605
Claim payments (442,216) (275,853)
Ending liability § 230,054 § 175,459

Rastatement

Beginning net assets were restated due to correction of recording
compensated absences of $40,812 in liabilitlies for the governmental furds.
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RECEIFPTS
Property and other County tax
Intersat and penalty on property tax
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Chargea for servioe
Une of money and proparty
Misgcellaneous

Total receipta

DISBUCRSEMENTS
Publie safety and legal aervices
Physical health and scooclal sexvices
Mantal health

County envirorment and aducation services

Roads and transportation
governmental sarvices to residezts
Adminigtrative services
Nonprogram

Debt service

Capltal project

Total dlisbursements

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RECEIFTS OVER
{UNDESR) DISBURSEMENTS

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, MNET

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY] OF RECEIPTH AND OTHER

WINNESHIBK COUNTY

BUDGETARY COMPRRIBON SCHEDULE
DISBURSEMENTS, AND CHANGES 1IN BALANCE -
RURGET AND ACTUAL (CROH BASISZ) - ALL GOVERNMEWIAL FONDS

STATEMENT OF RECRIMIS,

June 30, 2003

FINANCING BOURCES OVER (UNDER) DISBURSEMENTS

AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BALANCE, begipning of year

BALANCE, end of year

Final to
Actual

LaBg Varlance-

Amounts not Budget Budget Amounts Pogitive

Actual Budgeted Basis Origlnal Final {Negative}
$ 6,098,428 6,558,428 § 6,818,547 & 6,618,547 5 {20,119}
51,687 51,687 45,210 45,210 6,477
6,022,334 6,032,334 5,768,138 6,311,827 [(289,493)
14,969 14,969 12,854 i2,85%0 2,119
517,391 517,391 496,649 542,049 (14,658)
244,745 144,745 218,738 225,098 19,647
129,084 8 15,370 114,514 133,788 108,288 6,226
13,589,438 15,370 13,574,069 14,253,920 13,863,869 (289,801}
1,553,184 1,553,184 1,685,437 1,681,346 128,162
1,367,014 1,367,014 1,444,525 1,451,337 84,323
1,964,796 1,984,796 2,195,663 2,195,662 210,867
954,602 954,603 1,166,429 1,026,930 72,3358
4,524,680 4,524,680 4,017,623 4,024,623 299,943
275,811 275,811 360,919 297,119 21,208
1,170,288 1,176,269 1,264,777 1,244,477 66,189
3,317 3,317 8,150 5,500 2,183
®59,658 569,658 577,783 577,783 B,1325
1,265,512 1,265,512 1,833,250 1,544,250 278,738
13,676,863 - 13,676,863 14,534,556 14,849,036 1,172,173
(87,425) 15,370 (102,795} {240,63E) (985,167} 882,372
8,832 8,832 1,000 8,330 502
{78,593} 15,370 (93,963) (237,536) (976,837) 883,874
5,805,544 5,805,544 5,112,317 5,805,544 -
% 5,726,951 -] 15,370 5,71%,581 § 4,874,681 $ 4,828,707 s 882,874

See Notes to Required Supplementary Ioformation.
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WINNESHIER COUNTY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Govermuental Fundsg

Modified
Cash Accrual Accrual
Bagig Adjustments BasSik
Revenmes § 13,589,438 $ (7,619) § 13,581,819
Expendicures 13,676,863 191,528 13,868,791
Net (87,425) {199,547) {286,372}
Other financing sources, net 8,832 40,000 48,832
Beginning fund balance 5,805,544 293,305 5,098,849
Ending fund balance $ 5,726,551 5 133,758 § 5,860,709

Sse Notes to Required Supplementary Informatiem.
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WINNESHIER COUNTY

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING
June 30, 2005

The budgetary coamparison is presented as Required Supplementary Information
in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for
govermments with significant budgetary perspective differences resulting from not
being able to present budgetary comparisons for the general fund and each major
special revenue fund.

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the County Board of Supervisors annually
adopts a budget on the cash basis following reguired public notice and hearing for
all funds except agency funds, and appropriates the amount dJdeemed necessary for
each of the different County offices and departments. The budget may be amended
during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances
are not recognized on the cash basis budget and appropriations lapse at yvear end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 10 major classes of
expenditures known as functiors, not by fund or fund type. These 10 functions are:
public safety and legal 3services, physical health and social sexrvices, mental
health, county enviromnment and education, roads and transportation, govermmental
services to residents, administration, nonprogram, debt sexrvice and capital
projecte. Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for
the general fund, special revenue funds, and debt service fund. Although the budget
document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at
the aggregated function level, not by fund. Legal budgetary control is also based
upon the appropriation to each office oxr department. During the year, one budget
amendment increased budgeted disbursements by $314,480. The budget amendment is
reflected in the fimal budgeted amounts.

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code
of Iowa by the appropriate governing body as indicated: for the County Extension
Office, by the County Agricultural Extension Council; for the County Assessor by
the County Conference Board; and for the E-911 System by the Joint E-911 Service
Board, and for Emergency Management Services by the County Emergency Management
Cammission.

Included in the amounts not budgeted is the forfeiture account used by the
Sheriff’s department.
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WWW, RACKEerneison.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Supervisors
Winneshiek County
Decorah, Iowa

Our audit was conducted for the purposgse of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise Winneghiek County’s basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nommajor fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor funds financial
statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements amd, in ocur opinion, except for the effects on the
information on the goverrmental activities explained in the third paragraph of our
report on page 2, such information is fairly stated in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as of asnd for the year ended June 30,
2005, taken as a whole.

We have previously audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standaxds, the basic financial statements of Winneshiek County as of and
for the years ending June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2004, (nome of which is presented
herein). We expressed qualified opinions on the governmantal activities due to the
omigsion of certain capital assets, net depreciation. We expressed unqualified
opinions on the business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining
fund information.

We have previously audited, in accordance with U.S. generaslly accepted
auditing standards, the general purpose financial statements of Winneshiek County
as of and for the year ending June 30, 2002, {(none of which is presented herein).
We expressed a qualified opinion on the 2002 general purpose financial statements
due to the omission of the general fixed asset &account group and certain
inventories of the special revenue funds. In our opinion, the information set
forth in the required supplementary information for emach of the four years in the
period ended June 30, 2005, appearing on page 48, ig fairly stated, in all material
ragpecte in relation to the basic and general purpose financial statements £rom
which it has been derived.

frocke, Jploon L2, P C

Decorah, Iowa
October 27, 2005
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ASSBETS
Cash and pooled lovestments
Recelvables
Propexty tax
Delinguent
Succeeding year
Accruad interest
Due from other funda
Dua from other goveroments

Total agsets

LIABILITIES AMD FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Acoounts payabla
Defarred rovenue
Succapding year property tax
other

Total liabilities
Fund Lalan¢eg
Reasgorvad
Dabt service
gpecial revenue funds

Total fund balancas

Total liabillities and fund balancas

WINNESHIER COUNTY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJCOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30,

See Independent Auditor‘s Report on the Supplementary Information.
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2005

SCHEDULE 1

Total Nonmajor

gpscial Debt Goveramental
Raveanue Service Funds
8 ALz, 748 14,253 H 333,001
137 137
263,378 263,378
341 31
3,266 2,266
4,770 4,77¢
-3 335,125 277,768 5 602,893
$ 1,200 5 1,300
263,378 263,378
1le 1i8
1,200 263,496 264,696
14,272 14,272
323,925 323,925
323,925 14,272 338,197
5 315,125 277,768 5 602,893




REVENUES
Property and other County tax
Intergoveromental
Chargesa for servica
Use of money and property

Total revenuess
EXPENDITURES
Current
Physical health and social services
Governnmeatal asrvices to residents
Dabt service
Total expenditures
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES
Transefers in

EXCESZ (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING BOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUMD BALANCES, begloning of year

¥UND BALANCESR, #nd of year

WINNESHIEK COUNTY

COMBINING SBCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURER

RND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NOMMATOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

fae Independsnt Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Information.
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BCHEDULE 2

Total Noomajor

Speginl Dabt Governmental
Revenus Bervice Funds

255,367 ] 255, 3587
29,168 14,273 43,441
16,533 16,533
3,702 3,701
49,402 269,640 315,043
9,646 9,646
22,023 22,023
569,658 569,658
31,669 369,654 601,337
17,733 (300,018) {2B2,245)
5,000 304,923 309,923
5,000 304,933 ine,923
22,733 4,905 27,638
301,152 9,367 310,559
323,925 14,272 L1 338,197




ECHEDULE 3
WINNESHRIEX COUNTY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
HOMMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUMDS
June 30, 2005

Congexrvation
Water Land Regorder’ae Recorder’s Total Hormma]or
REAP Tasting Aogquigition Recorda Trensaction Bpecial Revenua
Grant Grant Fund Managemenkt Fund Funde
ASSETS
Cash and pocled investments 3 lel,544 $ 78,609 3 36,259 $ 6,456 s 14,480 $ 317,748
Receivablea
Aocrued lnterest 333 8 341
Due from other funds 2,366 - 2,266
Due from other goveroments &,770 4,770
Total assats $ 182,277 5 81,379 g 36,259 $ g,730 & 14,480 [ 325,125
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitias
Acoounts payablae § - § 1,200 s - § - & - $ 1,200
Total liabilitiens - 1,200 - - - 1,300
Fund balances
Resarved 182,377 B2,179 36,259 8,730 14,4890 323,925
Total fund balances 182,277 82,179 36,259 9,730 14,480 323,925
Total liabilities and fund balances - 182,277 5 83,379 & 36,259 5 8,730 5 14,480 8 325,125

See Independent Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Inforxmation.
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REVENUES

Intergovernomental
Charges for sexvicae

Use of money and proparty

Total revenuea

EXPEMDITURES

Current

Physical health and soolal asexrvices
Governmental Bsrvices to residenta

Total expenditures

Transfers in

FUND BALANCES,

FUND BALANCES,

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

EXCESB (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

beginning of ysaxr

and of year

WINNESHIBE COUNTY

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIARL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Foded June 30, 2005

SCHEDULE 4

Congarvation
Water Land Recoxdex'e Regorder s Total Nonmajor
REAP Tapting hogquisition Records Transaction Special Revenus
Grant Grant Fund Hanagement Fund Funde
4 11,838 $ 17,330 H 29,168
3 4,537 S 11,9596 16,533
3,340 14% 212 3,701
15,178 17,330 $ - 4,686 ‘ 12,208 49,402
g, 646 9,648
4,859 17,364 22,023
- 9,645 - 4,659 17,384 31,669
15,178 7,684 - a7 {5,156} 17,733
5,000 5,000
15,178 7,684 5,000 27 {5,156) 22,733
167,089 74,495 31,2%9 8,703 19,636 301,192
$ 192, 277 8 82,179 5 36,259 $ 8,730 $ 14,480 $ 323,925

See Independent Auditer's Report on the Supplementary Information.
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WINNESHIEK COUNTY

COMBINING BCHEDULE QF NET AASETH

NORMAIOR PROPRIETARY FUNDE
Juoe 30, 2009

SCHEDULE 5

Totel
Burr Oak Fagtina Burr Oak Bewer Fastina Sower Hurx Oak Bawer Fastina Sewer Noamaijor
Bawar fSewar Ginking Sinking Regsrve Hagarve Enterprisee
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fuad Fund Funde
ARABETS
Cask mnd pooled inveatmants ] 26,217 § 9,257 8 558 5 g 3 7,887 & 3,044 $ 47,819
Receivables
Agcountas 975 197 1.172
Total ourrent assets 27,392 9,494 556 ;] 7,837 3,844 48,991
Ronourzrent asgets
Larnd 6,292 3,500 9,792
Wat capltal aseecs 491,736 494,240 975,976
Total nopcurrent apsets 488,028 457,740 - - - - 985,768
Total amasats & 515,220 s 507,234 & 856 & ;] $ 7,897 -] 3,844 -] 1,034,759
LIABILITIES RAND HET AASETS
Liabiiicies
Acgorued interest payabim $ 50 § 51 ] - § - -3 - 8 - 8 111
ifotes payable = = -
Total purrent liabilities 30 33 111
Nooourrent llabilitien
Long-term debt 91,142 126,577 217,71%
Total liabllities 91,192 126,638 217,030
Hot asspots
Invagted in capltael assets, net of related debt 396,886 371, 163 768,043
Raatricted 136,407 64,400 556 8 7.857 3,844 213,112
Unrestelcted {109,265) (54, 967) (164,233}
Total not assets 424,038 3890,5%& 3586 :] 7.897 3,044 816,929
Total liabilities and nst asseta ] 515,210 ] 507,234 § 558 8 a -] 7,897 5 3.044 [} 1,034,759

Faa Independent Auditox‘s Rapoxt on the Supplementary Information.
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CPERATING REVENUES
Chaxges for mexvices

Total cperating revanouos
OFFRATING EXPINSES
Wages and benafits
Deapraniaticn
Othex
Total operating expenses
Cparating losa
RONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENAES)
Interest lncoma
Interent sxpense
Net nonoparating rovenuwes {(sxpenses)
Income bafors contributlons and txonafors
OPORATING TRANSFERS
Transfer in
Tranafer cut
Total oparating tranefera
Chenage in net assets
NET ASBETS, beginning of yaar

NET ASSETY, ond of ysaar

Sae Indopondent Auditoxn s Report on the Supplemontary Information.

COMBINING FCHEDULE OF REVENUEH, EXPENSES JND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

WINNESHIERK COUNTY

HOWREAJOR PROFRIETARY FINDB
For the Year Ended Juaw 30, 2005

SCHEDULE 6

Toral
Burr ODak Festina Burr Cak Sewar Faatina Saewar Burr Oak Bawer Fastina Sewexr Woomajor
Bawor Hewax 8inking 8inking RoBerve Reserve Enterprise
Fund Fund Fond Fund Fond Fand Fands

$ 17,838 [ 14,987 L] - 5 - 5 - $ - $ 32,843
17,835 14,9587 - - - - 33,922
805 31,459 4,264
12,830 11,518 24,646
6,129 1,484 7,612
19,763 15,759 - - - - 36,522
(1,928} {1,772} - - - - (3,700)
3i2 50 62
(4,635) (5,773) {10.408)
{4,323) {5,72}) - - - - {10,046}
{6,281) {7,495} - - - - (13,746)
6,226 7,342 6,229 7,344 636 744 28,520
(6,864} {5,080} (6,226) {7.,342) {26,520)
{638} {746) 2 2 636 744 -
(6,883) (9,341) 2 2 636 Tdd {13,748)
430,917 388,837 554 [ 7,26% 3,100 830,675
] 424,020 -] 80, 8%6 g 558 g 4 5 1,897 3 3,844 5 B16, 929
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BECHEDULE 7
WINNESHIEK COUNIT

COMBINING SCHEDOLE OF FIDGCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY Finioa
Juna 30, 2005

Auto
Agricultural Liceansa
County Extgnalon Axesn and
officos Education ABEESS80L Schools Schoola Corporations Townehipa TUpo Tax Othax Tobal
ASSETE
Cagh and pooled lnvestments
County Treasurar -] 2,398 $103,636 $ 155,580 $ 6,718 -3 40,6592 S 3,649 $374,303 414,009 $ 1,10%,155%
Other County officlals £ %8,3274 98,274
Recelvablics
Property tax
Dwlinguant ¥ 112 5,358 228 1,738 123 270 7,907
fugoetding yaar 161,50 219,337 10,713, 62% 449,244 3,138,393 352, 944 536,299 15,491,847
Account o 3,138 17,903 21,038
Acorued lntaxemt 07 a07
Daa fxom other governments 4,099 4,093 9,954
Prepald insuranceo 1,480 1,480
Totel asseks 5101,409 H 164,083 $ 328,664 510,874,571 $ 456,152 4 3,209,021 4 256.E1& £ 374,303 $974,583 $16,73%,642
LIABILITIES
Acoounts pavable 5 1,315 5 2,503 -] 3,018
Balariss and benefits payable 6,163 504 6,667
Tae to other funda % 75,580 $ 15,368 20,549
e to other governments 24,426 3 154,083 3a0,117 $10,874,571 § 456,192 % 3,209,031 4 156,018 358,935 971,576 16,635,737
Truste payabls 1,403 1,403
Acorued Lo ted ab » 1,089 1,889
Total limbilitiem §101,489 [ ] el 003 § 330,664 510,074,571 456,157 % 3,209,021 4§ 2568, (16 374,303 $974,38) 418,739,842

fas Indspondent Auditor’sa Raport oo tha Supplementary Informaticn.
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COMBINING SCHBDOLE OF CHAMGES IN FIDOCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIRS

WINNESHIEX COUNTY

AGEWCY FUNDS

For the Year Boded June 30, 2003

SCHELULE B

huto
Agricultural Llceanse
County Exteneglon Axen and
0ffices Education AgBaBa0x Zchools Schools Corporaticne Townahips Ore Tax Other Total
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
HALAMNCE, beginning of yaar 5 66,132 $ 2,403 t 64,368 4§ 156,043 $ 6,971 ¥ 48,143 £ i, 344 $ a75,57¢% $257,912 & 1,001,894
ADDLTIONT
Progorty and other County tax 140,433 212,306 9,910,322 431,35% 3,533,461 237,468 409,292 15,085, 641
Btata tox oradlta 6,487 11,578 47,723 a3,778 148,960 1é,340 34,3717 T85, 048
Drivers licunse feos &1, 305 61,305
Office fean and collegotioms 329,303 297 330,180
Auto licenas, uss tax aod poAGRGe 4,333,839 4,333,829
2-911 tealephonms surchergem 81,450 83,450
Miacellanacum 580,236 20,242 184,747 773,218
Assansments 104,803 103,805
TroRts 136,355 136,365
Total additions 1,053,984 1%8,910 245,523 10,458,045 445,134 3,702,421 247,016 4,395,144 599,671 21,705,856
DEDUCTIONG
Agency remittances
To cther funds 185,932 137, 465 323,397
To other governmentm 141,300 158,842 10,453,142 448,159 3,700,138 147,380 4,250,955 661,051 20,066,773
Truuts paid out 137,538 137,336
Hisoslinaaoun 353,939 220, 364 187, 448 §3L,951
Total deductionm 1,918,707 158,843 220, 564 14,453,142 445,159 3,700,135 247,358 4,396,430 819,299 231,459,657
BALAMNCE, #nd of yoar § 161,409 § 2,480 $ 109,337 § 160,945 ] G, 946 ] %0,424 ] 3,972 % ATE,; 203 §ham,. and § 1,348,089

See Indepsndont Auditor’sm Report on tha Supplementary Information.
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SCHEDULE 5
WINNMESHIEYX COUNTY

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EY SOURCE AND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
All GOVERMMENTAYL YUND TYPES
Years Ended June 30,

Modified Accrnal

2005 2004 2003 2002
REVENUES
Property mnd other County tax $ 5,462,955 § 5,728,954 $§ 5,745,793 $ 5,340,870
Local option sales tax 1,144,299 958,144 954,606 955,149
Intarest and penalty om property tax 51,129 65,567 56,975 52,632
Intergovernmental 5,996,376 6,133,510 6,134,465 6,319,296
Licenses and permits 14,969 13,577 9,317 9,420
Charges for eervice 554,535 566,941 §33,625 443,853
Use of money and property 252, 964 209,672 241,446 237,426
Misncellangous 104,550 136,139 64,201 653,333
Total revenues § 13,881,819 $ 13,812,504 $ 13,740,428 $ 14,011,977
EXPERDITORES
Current
Public safety and legal services $ 1,568,370 $ 1,491,544 $ 1,336,837 $ 1,365,803
Phyeical health and socimsl services 1,350,847 1,381,162 1,434,542 1,374,493
Mepntal health 1,973,588 2,113,732 2,291,141 2,354,533
County environment and &ducation services 969,412 543,942 583,901 800,079
Roadg and tramnsportation 4,464,545 4,495,658 3,484,717 3,481,794
Govarmmental services to residents 275,852 275,390 254,917 243,726
Agminigtrative services 31,213,439 1,080,717 1,020,258 849,361
Nomprogram 3,317 3,344 4,804 14,928
Debt gervice 569,658 B21,93¢ 578,122 584,241
Capital project 1,879,367 1,135,748 1,142,002 2,026,209
Total expenditures $ 13,868,751 $ 13,743,171 $ 12,531,241 $ 13,175,587

Ses Independent Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Imformation.
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SCHEDULE 190

WINNESHTERK COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2005

None
Section I: Summary of the Independent Anditor’s Results Yes No Reported

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issuwed: @ualified.

Intermal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? X
¢ Reportable condition(e) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? X
¢ Noncompliance material toc financial statements noted? X

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

¢ Material weakmess(es) identified? X
¢ Reportable condition(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness{es)? X

Type of auditor’s report issuwed on compliance for
major programs: ungualified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are requirsd to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
Circular A-1337 X
Identification of major programs
CFDA Number 14.228, Community Development Block Grants\State’s Program
CFDA Number 93.558, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee gqualified as low-risk auditee? X

Section II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

05-1 Segregation of Duties

One 1important aspect of internal control is the segregation of Auties
among employees to prevent an individual emplovee from handling duties which
are incompatible. Bank deposits are prepared by the same person who opens
the bank statement. Disbursements and checks are prepared by ome person.

Recammendation

While we do recognize that the County is not large enough to permit a
segregation of duties for an effective intermal control structure, we believe
that it is important that the Board be aware that the corndition does exist.

Response and Corrective Action Planned

We segregate duties in our offices as much as possible, and will strive
to improve internal controls where possible.

Conclusion
Raesponse accepted.
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SCHEDULE 10
(Continued)

WINNESHTER COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Section III: Findings and Questiomned Costs for Federal Awards

Instances of norncompliance - Nomne
Reportable condition -

CFDA Number 14.228, Cammunity Development Block Grants\State’s Program
Pederal Award Year: 2005

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through Iowa Department of Econamic Development

See 05-1 above

CFDA Number 53.558, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Federal Award Year: 2005

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through Iowa Department of Human Rights

See 05-1 above

Section IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

See management letter dated October 27, 2005

Section V: Summary of Prior Federal Audit Findings and Questiocned Costs

NM/A
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WINNESHIEK COUNTY

SCEEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL RWARDS

BCHEDULE 11

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005
CFDA Program
Granter /Program Humber Grant RNumber/Deascripticn Expend] tures
Indirect
U.8. Department of Agrioulture
Papned through Iowa Department of Human Sexvices
State Administratlive Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program 10.5%61 LAE Railmbursement -4 8,931
pepartment of Housing and Urban Development
rassed through Iowa Department of Econcmic Development
Copmunity Development Bloock Grant 14.2248 02-CP-027 249,396
04d-ED-005% 76,600
325,996
Department of Trangportation
Pagsed through Iowa Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Comstruction a0.2058 BROS-CO96(69) --8T-96 8,734
Environmental Proteotion Agency
FPageed through Iowa Department of Public Health
State Indoor Radon Grantwe 66.032 5BA5SRCO2 1,965
Department of Health and Human Servicas
Passed through Iowa Department of Human Righte
Tamporary AsBliptance for Needy Famflies 93.558 Fapgg-05-25-rq 115,868
LAE Raimbursement 11,816
127,684
Immunization Grants 93.3468 508431425 786
5B8E5I425 1,614
2,400
Maternal and Child Health Bervices Block Grant to the States 93.954 58B4MCH3 966
3885MC03 2,844
3,810
Passed through Hancock County Public Health Services
Conters for Dlsease Control and Prevention, Investigations, and
Tachnical Asslstance 93.003 BTO4016 13,740
BTOS5016 13,833
32,573

See Independant Auditor’s Report oa the 8chedule of Federal Awards.
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SCHEDULE 11

{Continued)
WINNESHIEX COUNTY
BCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
CFDA Program
Grantor/Frogram Mumber Grant Mumber/Description Expoandlturesg
Indlrect {Contimued)
Department of Health and Human Services (Continoued)
Pasaed through Iowa Department of Buman Sexvicas
Sccial Services Block GQrant $3.667 96-001 % 75,853
LAE Reimbursement 7.608
83,461
Other Federal Financial Ageistance
Human Serviges Administrative Reimburgements
Rafuges and Entrant Asgismtance - State Administered Programa 93.566 LAE Reimbursement 17
child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care
and Development Fund 93.59§ LA¥ Reimbursement 2,216
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.558 LAE Relmbursement 6,180
Adoption Aesistance 931.559 LAF Relmburgement 1,438
Medical hAsslstence Program 93.778 LAE Reimbursement 12,693
22,644
Sub-total Department of Health and Human Services 272,572
rederal Emergency Management Agency
Paafsed bthrough Iows Department of Publlic Defense
State Domestic Preparadness Equipmsnt Support Program 37.004 FY(03 SHEGPI 2,061
Stata snd Local Homeland Security Tralning Program 97.0053 2002 DOJ Exearclse 1,688
Publlc Asslstance Grants 97.038 FEMA DR-151B-IA 89,580
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.63%9 0996-0343 5,909
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 EMPG Reimbureement 9,603
Subtotal Federal Emexgency Management Agenqy 109,238
Total Faederal Finapolsl heslstance B 737,336

Feo Iodependsnt Avditor’s Report on the Schedule of Federal Awardas.
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Mote 1.

Note 2.

WINNESHTER COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Rwards
includes the £federal grant activity of Winneshiek County and is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govermmentg, &and Non-profit
Organizations. Therefore, same amounts presented in thig schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
basic financial statements.

Loans Outstanding

Winneshiek County has outstanding notes payable to the Rural
Housing and Commnity Development Service totaling $91,142 and $126,577
as of June 30, 2005. The proceeds fram these notes were advanced under
the Water and Waste Disgposal Systems for Rural Cammnities Program.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAYL. STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
Winneshiek County
Decorah, Iowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate zremaining fund
information of Winneshiek County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which
collectively comprise Winneshiek County’s basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated Octcber 27, 2005. The report on governmental
activities was qualified because of the cmission of certain capital assets, net
depreciation. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 1in
Goverrment Auditing Standards, issued by the Camptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Wimnmeshiek County's
internal comtrol over f£financial reporting in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting.
However, we noted certalin matters involving the intermal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we comsider to be reportable conditions.
Reportable conditions involve matters caoming to our attemntion =relating to
significant deficiemncies in the design or operation of the intermal control over
financial reporting that, in our Jjudgmemt, could adversely affect Winneshiek
County’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data
consistent with the assertions of management in the £financial statements.
Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as item 05-1. The reportable condition was unresolved fram the
prior year.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in whichk the design or
operation of one or more of the intermal coantrol components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements cauvsed by erroxr or fraud in
amounts that would be material in zrelation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by emplovees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not mnecessarily digsclose all
mattars in the intermal control that might be reportable conditione and,
accordingly, would pot necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. Bowever, we believe that pome of the
reportable conditions described above igs a material weakness.
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Compliance and Othex Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assuxance about whether Winmneshiek County’s
financial statements are free of material migstatement, we performed tests of its
campliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, comtracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materiazl effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance wilth those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of ocur tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Anditing Standards.

We alsoc noted certain additional matters that we reported to management of
Winneshiek County in a separate letter dated October 27, 2005.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of
Supervisors, management, others within the County, and federal awarding agemcies

and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

floed, bl 45, PC.

Decorah, Iowa
October 27, 2008
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TNDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Supervisors
Winneshiek County
Decorah, Iowa

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Winneghiek County with the types of
campliance requirementsg described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Campliance Supplament that are applicable to each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2005. Winneshiek County’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accampanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of Winneshiek County’s management.
Our respomsibility is to express an opinion on Winneshiek County's compliance based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Camptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 reguire that we plan and
perform the audit to obtainm reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of campliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence sabout Winneshiek County's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we comnsidered mecessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Winneshiek County’s
campliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Winneshiek County complied, in all material respects, with

the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
programst for the year ended June 30, 2005.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Winneshiek County is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws,
requlations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered Winneshiek County’e internal comntrol over
campliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on campliance and to test sand report on the intermal
control over campliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and
its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditiomns
involve matters coming to cur attention relating to significant deficiencies in the
design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our Jjudgment,
could adversely affect Winneshiek County’s ability to administer a major federal
program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contractgs, and grants. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questions Costs at Item 05-1. The reportable condition
was unresolved from the prior year.

A material weakness 1is a reportable condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that norcampliance with the applicable requirements
of laws, regulations, contractg, and grants caused by error or fraud that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur amrd not be
detected within a timely periocd by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. Our consideration of the intermal control over
compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. HRowever,
we believe that nome of the reportable conditions described above is a material
weakness.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the govermmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Winneshiek County, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, and
bhave issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2005. Our audit was performed for
the purpose of forming opinjons on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Winneshiek County’s basic financizl statements taken as a whole. The
accaompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ig presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part
of the basic financial satatements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the auvdit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Boaxrd of
Supervisors, management, others within the County, and federal awaxding agencies
and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anvone other than these specified parties.

Fak, Thlon 205, PC

Decorah, Iowa
October 27, 2005
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MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Board of Supervisors
Winneshiek County
Decorah, Iowa

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of
Winneshiek County as of and for the year ended Jume 30, 2005, we considered the
County’s internal control structure to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the fipnancial statememnts and not to provide
assurance on the internal contreol structure.

In accordance with Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa, we are required to report
on the County’s campliance with certain sections of the Iowa Code, Attormey
Gaeneral’s Opipions and other matters. Items 1 through 11 below are compliance
camments required by the Iowa Auditor of State. A separate report dated October
27, 2005, contains our report on reportable conditions in the County's intermnal
control structure. This letter does not affect our report dated October 27, 2005
on the €financial statements of Winneshiek County. Comments 10 and 12 are
unregsolved camments £rom the prioxr year. All other prior year statutory comments
have been resolved. These camments are not intended to amnd do not comstitute legal

1. Official Depositories
A resolution naming official depositories has been approved by the
Board. The maximum deposit amount stated in the resolutiorn for the
general fund and recorder’s office were exceeded.

Recammnendation
We recommend that the depository resolutions be reviewed to ensure
that the limits are not exceeded during the year.

Response
The general fund will be modified more closely by the Treasurer.
We will also increase the amournt for the Recorder.

Conclusion
Response accepted.
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Certified Budget

Disburseaments for the year ended June 30, 2005 did not exceed the
amounts budgeted in total. The roads and transportation function area
appropriations were exceeded prior to passing the budget amendment. We
also noted that Emergency Management Commission, Assessor, and E911
Service Board had some line items that exceeded the budget.

Recammendation

We recommend that the appropriations are reviewed and amendments
approved prior to them being exceeded.

Response
We will watch this more closely in the future.

Conclusgion
Response accepted.

Questionable Expenditures

We noted nc expenditures that did not meet the requirements of
public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April
25, 1879.

Travel Expaense
No expenditures of County money for travel expenses of spouses of
County officials and/or employees were noted.

Business Transactions
We noted no business trarsactions between the County and County
officials and/or employees for the vear ended June 30, 2005.

Bond Coverage
Surety bond coverage of County officials and amployees ig in
accordance with statutory provisionms.

Board Minutes

No transactions were found that we believe should bave been
approved in the Board minutes but were not. The minutes were published
as required by Chapter 349.18 of the Code of Iowa and Attorney General’s
opinions dated December 10, 1985, December 31, 1986 and May 2, 1989.

Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification

The County properly dedicated property tax revenue to conservation
purposes as required by Chapter 455A.19(1)(b) of the Code of Iowa in
order to receive the additiomal REAP funds allocated in accordance with
Subsections (b)(2) and (b)(3).

County Extension Office

The County Ewxtension Office is operated under the authority of
Chapter 176A of the Code of Iowa and serves as an agency of the State of
Iowa. Thig fund is administered by an extension council separate and
distinct from County operations and, consequently, is not included in
Exhibits A through D.

Disbursementsg during the year ended June 30, 2005 for the County
Extengion Office did not exceed the amount budgeted.

The surety bond covering the Treasurer of the County Extension
Council was in compliance with statutory provisions.
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10.

11.

12,

13.

Econamic Development

During the year ended June 30, 2005 the County paid $61,138 for
econamic development and did not document a public purpose in the Board
minutes. According to Chapter 15A of the Code of Iowa and an Attorney
General’s opinion dated 2August 28, 1986, govermment financing of
econamic development may, in appropriate circumstances, serve a public
purpose. The opinion adviges that the goverming body should evaluate
the public banefits to be obtained and discusses sgpecific criteria to be
considered in documenting the public purpose.

Recommendation

The Board should document the public purpose served by the
expenditures before authorizing further payvments and should regquire
documantation of how the funds were used to accamplish econamic
development activities.

Response
We will document in the minutes the purpose for these funds in the
future.

Conclusion
Response accepted.

Deposgits and Investments

The County has entered into a public funds custodial agreement for
certain of its govermmental securities held in safekeeping as required
by Chapter 15 of the Treasurer of State’s administrative rules.

Property and Equipment Records

A partial record of the County’s fixed assets isg maintained by
individual offices. Property jourmal totals have not been summarized,
nor has reconciliation been performed to balance additions and deletions
to the general ledger.

Recammendation

We recommend that complete property and equipment records be
developed. In addition, to facilitate the proper insurance, maintenance
and safeguarding of these assets, an inventory of all property and
equipment should be taken at least once each year and checked against
the fixed assets zrecords. Management may want to consider the
employment of an outside consulting firm to maintain its property
records.

Response
We are working on it as we have time.

Conclusion
Response accepted.

Solid Waste Fees Retainage

During the year ended Junme 30, 2005, ¢the s80lid waste fees
established by Chapter 455E.11(2), (11), (13) and (15) of the Code of
Iowa, were administered by Winneshiek County Area Solid Waste Agency.
The agency is a 2BE organization of which Winneshiek County is a member.
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14.

15.

l6.

Recorder’s Office

During our audit of the recorder’s office we noticed that checks
were back dated to the month end date. It was also noted that
quarterly reports submitted to the Supervisors did not reconcile back
to actual cash receipts and disbursements on the bank statements.

Recammendation
We recommend that checks be dated as of the day they are written

and that quarterly reports reconcile back to the actual cash receipts
and digbursements.

Response

We will try to issue the checks and reconcile the statements in a
timely manner.

Conclusgion
Response accepted.

Disbursements

During our audit, we noticed various items that were not in
canpliance with Board policy. There were five invoices that were paid
without being approved by the department head.

Recamendation

We recammend that all invoices be reviewed to note approval before
being paid.

Resgponse

Notice will be given to each department head to make sure they
have approved invoices before sulmitting to the auditor’s office for
payment .

Conclugion
Response accepted.

Trangsfers
During our audit, we noted that general fund and rural basic fund
transfers to secondary roads exceeded the maximm amount allowed under

Chapter 331.429 of the Code of Iowa.

Recammendation
We recammend that the County review transfers to make sure they do
not exceed the maximm allowable amount before authorization.

Response

The transfer amounts given every month is based on what has been
collected each month. We will not transfer the full amount approved by
Resolution of the Board the last month of fiscal year if not enocugh
taxes are collected.

Conclusion
Response accepted.

61



17.

Auditor

During our audit we noted three duties that are required by the
Code of Iowa Chapters 434.22, 437.10, and 438.16 that were not being
done by the County Aunditor. These duties include a) transmitting to
other local govermment officials the length of the main track, b) the
asgessed value of each railway located within the County, transmitting
to other 1local government officials the length of the electric
transmission line companies located within the County, and c) carrying
out the duties related to the valuation and taxation of pipeline
campanies within the County.

Recommandation
We recammend that the County Auditor perform these duties in order
to be in compliance with the Code of Iowa.

Response

The utility values are included in the valuation report which the
Board raeceives. We were unaware they had to accept the report from the
Department of Revenue for each utility values. We will do this in the
future.

Conclusion
Response accepted.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of
Supervisors, management, others within the County, and federal awarding agencies
and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to
us by the personnel of Winneshiek County during the course of our examination.

Should you have any questions concerning these or other matters, we shall be

pleased to

discuss tham with you at your convenience.

Sbeh, Tolom s, PC.

Decorah, Iowa

October 27,

2005
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